

Roentgen's Laboratory—from Otto Glasser's "Wilhelm C. Roentgen," London 1933

diagnostic radiology
see overleaf

# The X-ray and Diagnostic Radiology

The frontispiece, a reproduction of an old photograph, shows Dr. Roentgen's laboratory in Wurzburg, Germany. It was here in 1895 that he reported on his discovery of the rays which now bear his name. Professor Roentgen, however, termed them X-rays, because their nature was unknown.

Early X-ray equipment was awkward to use and inefficient. Early radiologists frequently complained that they spent more time maintaining the equipment than using it. Physicians had to be their own mechanics and electricians. Electrodes would overheat and melt. Power was obtained through the use of inductor coils or static machines. High tension wires were strung across radiographic rooms, with little regard for the hazards involved.

The first users of roentgen ray equipment were unaware of the dangers of radiation. At the turn of the century, physicians would demonstrate the painlessness of the technique to their patients by placing their hands into the ray. This method also served to test the ray's penetrative strength. In those days it took 20 minutes to get an exposure and 2 to 3 hours to develop a picture. The results were unreliable. While people were still worrying whether the ray might be used by unscrupulous

persons to read the letters in metal mailboxes, Clarence M. Dally, an assistant of Thomas Edison, became radiation's first victim in 1904.

The major use by physicians in the early 1900's was to visualize fractures and locate foreign metallic bodies. In 1900, the American Roentgen Ray Society was formed in St. Louis by a group of physicians who believed in the diagnostic possibilities of the X-ray.

The improvements in the early equipment began when the induction coil gave way to the high-tension alternating current transformer. Rectification systems utilizing both phases of alternating current waves were added. In 1913, the hot cathode tube was developed. The rectifiers were replaced with a valve tube rectifier. Other tube developments have been the shockproof tube, the "ray-proof" tube, and the rotating anode tube.

Double emulsion films took the place of the glass plates which were in use until about 1920. Another development produced a grid which minimized scattered rays. The spot-film apparatus was another important improvement.

A half century of progress has been dramatic in this field. The trends in diagnostic radiology today are discussed in this issue by Dr. Theodore Hilbish on page 1017.

## PUBLIC HEALTH REPORTS



G. St. J. Perrott

Chief, Division of Public Health Methods

Managing Director

ARTHUR P. MILLER
Acting Executive Editor

TAFT S. FEIMAN
Managing Editor

WINONA E. CARSON

Asst. Managing Editor

#### **BOARD OF EDITORS**

EDWARD G. McGAVRAN, M.D., M.P.H., Chairman Chapel Hill

GAYLORD W. ANDERSON, M.D., Dr.P.H.

Minneapolis

Justin M. Andrews, Sc.D., L.L.D.

Washington

H. TRENDLEY DEAN, D.D.S. Chicago

HALBERT L. DUNN, M.D., Ph.D. Washington

MARTHA M. ELIOT, M.D., Sc.D. Washington

HAROLD M. ERICKSON, M.D., M.P.H.

Portland, Oreg.

LLOYD FLORIO, M.D., DR.P.H.

Denver

RUTH FREEMAN, R.N., Ed.D.

Baltimore

Victor H. Haas, M.D. Bethesda

Basil C. MacLean, M.D., M.P.H. New York City

SEWARD E. MILLER, M.D. Washington

M. ALLEN POND, M.P.H.

Washington

### U. S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE

OVETA CULP HOBBY, Secretary

#### PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE

LEONARD A. SCHEELE, Surgeon General











Dr. Dean.

Dr. Erickson.

Dr. Florio.

Dr. Haas.

Dr. Miller.

## The Board of Editors of Public Health Reports

The Surgeon General of the Public Health Service has announced the following recent appointments to the Board of Editors, Public Health Reports:

H. TRENDLEY DEAN, D.D.S., secretary of the Council on Dental Research, American Dental Association, Chicago, and former director of the National Institute of Dental Research, Public Health Service.

HAROLD M. ERICKSON, M.D., M.P.H., secretary and State health officer, Oregon State Board of Health, Portland, and president, Association of State and Territorial Health Officers. LLOYD FLORIO, M.D., Dr.P.H., on leave as professor of preventive medicine and public health, University of Colorado School of Medicine, Denver, and presently manager, Health and Hospitals, City of Denver.

VICTOR H. HAAS, M.D., a medical director in the Regular Corps of the Public Health Service, and serving since 1948 as director of the National Microbiological Institute, Public Health Service, Bethesda, Md.

SEWARD E. MILLER, M.D., a medical director in the Regular Corps of the Public Health Service, and since April 1954 chief of the Division of Special Health Services, Bureau of State Services, Public Health Service, Washington, D. C.

The new members of the board replace the following: John W. Knutson, D.D.S., Dr.P.H., Assistant Surgeon General and chief dental officer, Public Health Service, Washington, D. C.; Fillmore Sanford, Ph.D., executive secretary of the American Psychological Association, Washing-

ton, D. C.; George M. Uhl, M.D., M.S.P.H., health officer, Los Angeles, Calif.; and Russell M. Wilder, M.D., Ph.D., former director of the National Institute of Arthritis and Metabolic Diseases, Public Health Service, Bethesda, Md., now retired and living in Rochester, Minn.

Other members of the board of editors are:

CHAIRMAN EDWARD G. McGAVRAN, M.D., M.P.H., dean of the University of North Carolina School of Public Health, Chapel Hill.

GAYLORD W. ANDERSON, M.D., Dr.P.H., director, University of Minnesota School of Public Health, Minneapolis.

JUSTIN M. ANDREWS, Sc.D., LL.D., Assistant Surgeon General and associate chief for program, Bureau of State Services, Public Health Service, Washington, D. C. HALBERT L. DUNN, M.D., Ph.D., chief of the National Office of Vital Statistics, Public Health Service, Washington, D. C.

MARTHA M. ELIOT, M.D., Sc.D., chief, Children's Bureau, Department of Health, Education, and Welfare. Washington, D. C.

RUTH FREEMAN, R.N., Ed.D., associate professor of public health administration, Johns Hopkins University, Baltimore.

Basil C. MacLean, M.D., M.P.H., director, Strong Memorial Hospital, University of Rochester, Rochester, N. Y.

M. ALLEN POND, M.P.H., assistant to the special assistant for health and medical affairs, Department of Health, Education, and Welfare, Washington, D. C.







Dr. Anderson.



Dr. Andrews.



Dr. Dunn.



Dr. Eliot.



Dr. Freeman.



Dr. MacLean.



Mr. Pond.

Public Health Reports

U. S. DEPARTMENT OF
HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE
PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE
WASHINGTON 25, D. C.

PENALTY FOR PRIVATE USE TO AVOID PAYMENT OF POSTAGE, \$300 (GPO)

OFFICIAL BUSINESS

If you do not desire to continue receiving this publication, please CHECK HERE []; tear off this label and return it to the above address. Your name will then be promptly removed from the appropriate mailing list.

# PHR